DEVRY SMITH FRANK LLP

Lawyers & Mediators

michael.farace@devrylaw.ca
416.446.5094

By Delivered/Email
June 9, 2014

Toronto City Council
Toronto City Hall

100 Queen Street West
Toronto, ON, M5H 2N2

Email: mayor@toronto.ca / clerk@toronto.ca
Your Worship and Council:

Re:  June 10/11 Council Meeting. Public Works Committee Item PW31.18
Trisan Construction
Proposed 1 Year Suspension from Bidding or Awarding Contracts

We are lawyers for 614128 Ontario Ltd., which operates as Trisan Construction.

As you may be aware, the Public Works and Infrastructure Committee voted on May 14, 2014 to declare
Trisan ineligible to bid on or be awarded construction tender calls for a period of 1 year. Council will be
voting on the proposed suspension at the upcoming meeting (item PW31.18).

The proposed suspension relates to allegations of poor performance in the execution of two Basement
Flooding Protection Program contracts in Councillor Carroll’s ward (Contact 12FS-14WP awarded
September 19, 2012 and Councillor Mammoliti’s ward (Contract 12FS-22WP awarded January 16,
2013). Staff’s report provides more detail about the allegations.

The purpose of our letter is to request that Council depart from the Committee and staff recommendation
and instruct staff to address their concerns through the dispute mechanisms in the contracts.

We believe after you have read this letter and the enclosed materials, you will find there are compelling
reasons to support given:

e the nature of the alleged issues and lack of opportunity for Trisan to respond to the allegations,

e the complex nature of the Basement Flooding Program Contracts, and limited number of
contractors actually working on that program.

e Trisan’s history of reliable performance on $285 Million worth of work for the City, and

e The inappropriate and harshness of the suspension, and harm it will cause the City, Trisan, and
residents.
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The Proposed Suspension and Basement Flooding Contracts

The Basement Flooding Protection Program contracts are generally complex, and require
prequalification to demonstrate the contractors has the necessary technical skills. Attachment 1 explains
this in greater detail.

As with 5 Basement Flooding Protection contracts Trisan previously completed, the two recent contracts
involved sewer and water main upgrades. As staff have acknowledged, both involved “challenging
sewer construction” that was required in order to protect residents from basement flooding due to sewer
surcharging. .

As with all of the City’s contracts, the contract documents form the basis of the relationship, set out
responsibilities, consequences of failure, and provide for a system of dispute resolution in the event of
disagreements over job performance and other matters. They do not provide the City with the right to
suspend Trisan from future bidding opportunities.

With respect to the two basement flooding contracts at issue, our client acknowledges that issues arose
and concerns were expressed. Most of concerns were relatively common matters on large construction
projects, and resolved quickly without further concern. There was, however, unexpected basement
flooding during work in Councillor Carroll’s ward that remains an ongoing concern for Councillor
Carroll and some of her constituents.

Trisan has worked diligently to address all concerns. With the exception of the basement flooding issue,
which was promptly responded to, Trisan has not been presented with a notice of default under either
contract in relation to any other allegations of poor performance. As such Trisan was very surprised to
learn about the proposed suspension on May 7", and that it would be debated only 7 days later at the
May 14 Public Works and Infrastructure Committee meeting.

The Staff report was written and the Committee date was scheduled without any prior discussion with
Trisan about the allegations of poor performance and proposed suspension. Attachment 2 is a
preliminary response to the allegations against Trisan. Despite presenting this response to the Public
Works Committee, the City has still not sat down and discussed the allegations or Trisan’s response.

Contractor Performance Evaluation Program and Alleged Performance Deficiencies

As set out in the staff report, the recommendation for a 1 year suspension is based on the Contractor
Performance Evaluation program (CPE Program) adopted by Council approximately 6 months ago at the
November 2013 Council meeting. Attachment 3 is copy of the staff report on the purpose and
implementation of the CPE Program, which is to form part of all contracts put to tender after November
2013. It was not implemented retroactively, or imposed on existing contracts.

The two key features of the CPE program are (i) the use of performance evaluations to monitor
contractor performance determine if remedial steps, such as suspension, are warranted (i.e. if the
performance evaluation score is low), and (ii) use of the contract dispute resolution processes to resolve
any disagreement about the performance evaluation score.

With respect to Trisan and the two Flooding Protection Program contracts,
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e the CPE was not part of the contracts.
e no performances evaluations were ever completed, and

e Trisan has not been afforded an opportunity to dispute the allegations of poor performance in
accordance with the contracts.

In the circumstances, the proposed suspension is both manifestly unfair and of questionable legality.
Our client has strong and valued working relationship with the City and Staff. If there are issues related
to these two contracts, our client will answer for them, but it should be pursued through the mechanisms
provided for in the relevant contracts.

Trisan is a Reliable and Specialized Contractor with an Enviable Performance History

Trisan has successfully completed at least 85 contracts with the City since 2001. These contacts include
construction and remediation work on roads, sewers, and utilities through the City. Attachment 4 is an
itemized list of Trisan’s work for the City.

On every project, Trisan has delivered on its commitments and received favourable performance
evaluations. This is a solid and enviable track record that stands in marked contrast to the allegations in
the staff report that Trisan has a “record of poor performance” warranting a 1 year suspension.
Attachment 5 provides a review of Trisan’s contract performance record.

Staff have suggested adopting the suspension recommendation will send a message to Trisan “and the
wider construction industry that poor performance will not be tolerated on City contracts”.
Unquestionably the suspension will send a message about the way that City contracts are administered
and executed, but that message won’t be about poor performance it will be about the risks and
uncertainty of doing business with the City.

It is neither fair nor appropriate to suspend Trisan’s based on allegations of poor performance that have
not been documented or pursued under the terms of the contract.

Suspension is Unfair and will Hurt Trisan, the City, Employees and Residents

Trisan is one of a limited number of firms with the specialized expertise required to complete the
complex underground construction called for on many City contracts. The suspension will not only
unfairly deny Trisan business opportunities, it will decrease the already small pool of bidders prepared
to work on these contracts with the resulting increase in contract prices for the City. These are not
inconsequential impacts for Trisan or the City.

However, the suspension will be hardest on employees who both live and work in the City of Toronto.
Given the scope of work Trisan has been doing with the City over the last several years, Trisan typically
employees nearly 100 people full time in the City of Toronto, and over 70 of Trisan’s employees are
residents of the City.

These are dedicated hard working individuals, who contribute to the City’s economy. A 1 year
suspension of Trisan from bidding will actually result in Trisan not performing any work in the City for
a much long period as they will only be allowed to pursue further work once that suspension has been
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a much long period as they will only be allowed to pursue further work once that suspension has been
lifted. This will dramatically affect Trisan’s over all business, and unfortunately, it will likely require
Trisan to reduce its payroll until business resumes.

Conclusion

The proposed 1 year suspension has been hastily proposed based on a CPE Program that is not part of
Trisan’s contracts, and was not followed by the City. It is neither fair nor reasonable and stands
completely at odds with Trisan’s long standing record of solid performance.

Our client strongly disagrees with the allegation that its performance has been substandard on the two
contracts, and if forced to, will take remedial steps to protect its reputation and business. Recognizing -
the positive working relationship between Trisan and the City, our client would prefer to work with the
City to resolve any outstanding concerns.

Staff unquestionably have expressed concerns about Trisan’s performance that need to be addressed, but
a 1 years suspension is not the appropriate sanction. The contract documents provide the City with
many avenues of recourse if Trisan’s performance on these two contracts has not been adequate. The

- contract processes are the appropriate means of resolving those issues and concerns.

We therefore request that the proposal for ineligibility to bid not be ratified, and Council refer
this issues to staff to address any issues in accordance with the contracts.

Yours very truly,

DEVRY SMITH FRANK LLP

e

Michael Farace
ce

Encl.

cc: client
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